
 

 

 

 
City of Woodstock 

Office of the City Manager 
Phone (815) 338-4301   Fax (815) 334-2269 

citymanager@woodstockil.gov 
www.woodstockil.gov 

121 W. Calhoun Street          Roscoe C. Stelford III  
Woodstock, Illinois 60098         City Manager 
 

                       WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

City Council Chambers 

February 18, 2014 

7:00 p.m. 

                                 

Any Person Wishing to Address the City Council 

Must Approach the Podium, be Recognized by the 

   Mayor, and Provide Their Name and Address for the Record 

   

The proceedings of the City Council meeting are being audio-recorded only 

to aid in the preparations of the Minutes and are not retained as part of the 

permanent records of the City. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

 

ROLL CALL: 

          

 

A. FLOOR DISCUSSION:  1.) Proclamation Recognizing Music in the Schools 

                                                    Month 

                                               2.) Proclamation Honoring Dave Reeve 

 

Anyone wishing to address the Council on an item not already on the agenda may do 

so at this time. 

1. Public Comments 

2. Council Comments    

                   

CONSENT AGENDA: 
(NOTE: Items under the consent calendar are acted upon in a single motion.  There is 

no separate discussion of these items prior to the Council vote unless: 1) a Council 

Member requests that an item be removed from the calendar for separate action, or 2) 

a citizen requests an item be removed and this request is, in turn, proposed by a 

member of the City Council for separate action.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







 

 

       City of    

               
 

Office  of  the City Manager                                                  phone 815 .338 .4301  

Rosco e C.  S te l ford  I I I ,  Ci ty Manager                                                      fax 815 .334 .2269  

121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                    c i t yman ager@woodsto cki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 
 

 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

DATE:  February 13, 2014 

 

RE:  Proclamation Recognizing March as 

“Music in Our Schools Month” 

 

 

Recognizing the positive impact that music in our schools has on students of all ages, March has 

traditionally been designated as “Music in Our Schools Month.” 

 

As stated in the attached proclamation, music is basic to a complete education, helping students acquire 

skills not only related to music, but in problem-solving, critical thinking, and evaluation as well. 

 

The City of Woodstock and its residents certainly value music as evidenced by support of the many 

programs conducted at the Woodstock Opera House and by 130 continuous seasons of the Woodstock 

City Band. 

 

In recognition of “Music in Our Schools Month,” representatives from the District 200 Music Boosters 

will be in attendance at Tuesday’s meeting, as well as two high school musical groups who will provide 

brief musical performances and a flutist who will provide a musical interlude in the mezzanine prior to 

the meeting. 

 

Council’s affirmation is requested for the attached Proclamation Recognizing March as “Music in 

the Schools Month” in the City of Woodstock. 



PROCLAMATION 

MUSIC IN OUR SCHOOLS MONTH 

MARCH, 2014 
 

 

 

WHEREAS, music is a universal language that speaks to all people; and  

WHEREAS, the residents of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK have a long history of supporting the 

musical arts as evidenced by the upcoming 130
th

 season of the Woodstock City Band as well as 

numerous musical concerts and programs conducted at the Woodstock Opera House;  

WHEREAS, the study of music contributes to the development of young people through 

heightened skills in listening, reading, self-expression and creativity; and  

WHEREAS, the study of music is basic to a complete education and provides a competitive edge 

for successful educational reform while engaging students in individual and group activities which 

develop creativity, problem-solving, critical-thinking, and evaluation skills; and  

WHEREAS, music education helps students acquire skills in the production and performance of 

music, as well as gives them an understanding of history and culture; and  

WHEREAS, music and other arts significantly enhance the morale and quality of the school 

environment; and  

WHEREAS, music programs should be maintained and improved for all students, regardless of 

their socio-economic status or their abilities,  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, 

MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS endorses the observance of the month of March as  

MUSIC IN OUR SCHOOLS MONTH 

APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, 

Illinois on this 18
th

 day of February, 2014. 

      _________________________________________ 

               Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

             Mayor 

Attest: 

 

_______________________________ 

Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk  



 

 

       City of    

               
 

Office  of  the City Manager                                                  phone 815 .338 .4301  

Rosco e C.  S te l ford  I I I ,  Ci ty Manager                                                      fax 815 .334 . 2269  

121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                    c i t yman ager@woodsto cki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 
 

 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

DATE:  February 13, 2014 

 

RE:  Proclamation Honoring Dave Reeve 

 

 

Having served the City of Woodstock for 21 years, Opera House Production Manager Dave Reeve has 

chosen to retire, effective March 1
st
.  As a modest public servant, I know Dave appreciates the City’s 

recognition of his extensive contributions to the Opera House and our community. 

 

During his tenure with the City, Dave and his “crew” have been responsible for producing more than 

6,000 performances and events at the Opera House, Stage Left Café, and the bandstand on the Historic 

Woodstock Square.  These facilities and their associated events have become hallmarks of the City of 

Woodstock, drawing thousands of audience members and immeasurably enriching the quality of life for 

our residents. 

 

In addition, Dave has used his expertise to improve the quality of those performances as a set designer, 

artist, carpenter, painter, and sound and lighting designer and through design and oversight of projects 

such as the Opera House Stage Lighting Project being considered on tonight’s Council Agenda. 

 

Unfortunately, our guest of honor, Dave Reeve will be unable to attend the Council meeting to accept the 

City’s Proclamation as he is already enjoying his retirement and warmer weather on a well-deserved 

vacation with his family in Florida.  The City Administration will make sure Dave receives the City’s 

Proclamation upon his return. 

 

Council’s affirmation of the attached Proclamation Honoring Dave Reeve upon his retirement from 

the Woodstock Opera House is requested. 



 
PROCLAMATION 

Honoring 

DAVE REEVE 
 
WHEREAS, Dave Reeve has officially retired as Woodstock Opera House Production 
Manager after serving the City of Woodstock for the past 21 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Woodstock Opera House is a renowned historic landmark facility and 
valuable economic draw for the Woodstock Square, offering programs that attract and entertain 
tens of thousands of Woodstock residents and visitors annually; and  
 
WHEREAS, over the course of his tenure, Dave Reeve has been responsible for the high 
artistic quality and responsible cost efficiencies of producing or presenting over 6,500 music, 
dance and theater performances, and unique cultural events both public and private, on the 
Opera House, Stage Left Café and Woodstock Square Bandstand stages; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dave Reeve  has displayed exemplary and innovative skills as artistic set designer, 
scenic artist, carpenter, painter, sound and lighting designer, and has performed a multitude of 
daily duties, all with courtesy and diplomacy, a sly grin and abundant good humor; and  
 
WHEREAS, Dave Reeve has served as the Opera House’s elder statesman and quintessential 
teacher, sharing generously of his knowledge and expertise, and serving as a motivating factor in 
theater career development for numerous students and Opera House staff members alike; and 
 
WHEREAS, under Dave Reeve’s ever-helpful and creative guidance, the wonder and magic 
of theater has truly come alive, enriching the lives of Opera House audiences, young and old, 
for over two decades; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock is truly appreciative of the commitment to the community 
that has been displayed by Dave Reeve in his role as a public servant, and has benefited from 
his many and varied demonstrated talents; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the City Council of the City of 
Woodstock, on behalf of all citizens of Woodstock, extends to Dave Reeve the community's 
heartfelt gratitude for his years of dedicated service as a City of Woodstock Employee and an 
outstanding contributor to the success of the Woodstock Opera House. 
 
APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry 
County, this 18th day of February, 2014. 

 
 
______________________________________ 

                                                                   Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk  



MINUTES 

WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

February 4, 2014 

City Council Chambers 

 

The regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor Brian 

Sager on Tuesday, February 4, 2014 in Council Chambers at City Hall.  He explained the consent 

calendar process and invited public participation.  

 

A roll call was taken.   

  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Julie Dillon, Maureen Larson, Mayor Brian Sager, Mark 

Saladin, Joseph Starzynski, RB Thompson, Michael Turner  

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

 

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Roscoe Stelford, City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg, Finance Director 

Paul Christensen, Economic Development Director Cort Carlson, Director of Public Works Paul 

Ruscko, Library Director Nick Weber, Chief of Police Robert Lowen, Deputy City Clerk Cindy Smiley 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

 

A. FLOOR DISCUSSION:   

1.) Transportation Commission Presentation 

 Andrew Celentano, 2116 Greenview Dr., Woodstock stated that he is the Chairman of the 

Woodstock Transportation Commission but advised that he is speaking for himself and not for the 

Commission.  He reviewed several projects that the Woodstock High students worked on and 

presented to the Commission.  He reported that teacher Steve Thompson has made the projects a part 

of the curriculum for the Project Lead the Way program with the presentation to the Commission 

being the final examination.   

 

A. Celentano presented information on the people that Jeff Van Landuyt was able to enlist to speak 

to the students on various topics associated with their projects.  He provided information on the 

projects done by the Marian Central Engineering Club.  He acknowledged J. Van Landuyt of Public 

Works stating that without his efforts the outcomes would not be nearly as good or productive. He 

noted that the students’ efforts will allow them to differentiate themselves on college applications.  

He stated that it is his personal opinion that what the Transportation Commission is doing should be 

expanded to other commissions.  He passed out a list of potential student projects to the Council. 

 

Mayor Sager expressed his thanks and stated that in his mind it is the coalescence of many positive 

things all working together.  He stated that it is a coalition of the commission who is an advisory 

commission that looks at the challenges of the our community, it is an outreach to our young people 

and educational program to provide them with real world opportunities to grow and to learn, and it 

provides the City the opportunity to utilize the professional Staff to help guide, direct and provide 

resource input for the projects.  He congratulated A. Celentano and the Transportation Commission 

for the outreach and agreed that it is something that can be replicated in many of the other 

commissions.                      

 

2.) Budget Award Presentation 

Mayor Sager stated that the award is for the City’s FY 13/14 budget document.  He advised that this 

was the last official budget that previous City Manager Tim Clifton over sighted and the award is 

considered to be an award to him but he reported that T. Clifton is in Florida.  He stated that it is 



Woodstock City Council 

2/4/14 

Page 2 of 8 

 

important to recognize the fact that the City has received the award for the past 12 consecutive years 

with this being the 13th year.   

 

He stated that the award is not just something that is routine, but it is something that is truly earned.  

He advised that the recognition comes from the Government Finance Officers Association and it is 

given to municipalities that meet the highest principals of governmental budgeting.  He stated that 

the program’s guidelines are designed to assess how well the City’s budget document serves as a 

policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide and a communications device.  He reported 

that budget documents must be rated proficient in all four categories and thirteen mandatory sub-

categories.  He reported that the most recent statistics from GFOA state that out of 2,731 municipal 

governments in Illinois, only 74 or 2.7% percent receive this prestigious award.  He expressed 

commendations to T. Clifton, Roscoe Stelford and Staff for making it a viable and distinguished 

award for the City of Woodstock.   

 

Public Comments 

No comments from the public. 

 

Council Comments 

J. Dillon complemented Public Works who have been very diligently keeping up with things during 

this tough winter.  She thanked them for their good work.  Mayor Sager stated that everyone is 

questioning the salt situation.   

 

P. Ruscko stated that the general consensus across the County is if you have it, keep it and use it as 

minimally as possible.  He advised that the struggle is getting additional salt delivered and noted that 

one of the suppliers is saying they are having issues getting the ice breakers through the Mississippi 

to get the barge to the delivery port.  He reported that the City currently has about 300 tons of pure 

rock salt and about 400 tons of a 50/50 blend of aggregate and salt.  He advised that two trucks 

arrived today to deliver salt that the City ordered weeks and weeks ago.  He reported that the City has 

about 800 tons on order but they are only getting 25 tons a day at the most.   He advised that they 

have called multiple suppliers as well as the State but have been unsuccessful in contacting anyone. 

 

M. Turner questioned how much is usually used in a typical snow storm.  P. Ruscko advised that a 

typical snow storm without a salt shortage is about 100 tons.  He stated that the City currently has 

been using anywhere between 50-75 tons depending on the snowstorm.  He advised that normally 

they apply salt during the snowstorm but they have scaled back during the snowstorm and are saving 

the material for the final clean-up.  M. Turner questioned whether the City will get the whole 800 and 

P. Ruscko stated that he believes the City will probably get the whole 800 but it may not be until the 

end of March.  He stated that everything that has been ordered is within the contract the City has 

signed through the State of Illinois.    

 

J. Starzynski questioned if the use of the salt is more dependent on the duration of how long the snow 

is falling or how much snow falls.  P. Ruscko stated that it is more of a function of the conditions 

such as a freezing rain that is washing the salt off.  He stated that normally if you have eight 1” 

events rather than one 8” event, you are going to use more salt with the small events. 

 

M. Turner stated that the City is focusing on intersections, hills and curves and P. Ruscko affirmed.  

M. Turner stated that they are also paying attention to what is happening the next day in regards to 

weather and if it is a weekend.  P. Ruscko affirmed and advised that they have gone out the next day 

when the sun is out and pushed slush off to try to get down to bare pavement.  M. Turner stated that 

any expectations that the roads are the way they were earlier in the season or ten years ago is 



Woodstock City Council 

2/4/14 

Page 3 of 8 

 

misplaced and he believes Public Works is doing the right thing by being very judicious.  He advised 

that they stretch it out and not be afraid to not have the roads perfectly cleared.   

 

Mayor Sager expressed his thanks and commendation to the entire crew who have been putting in a 

lot of long hours.  RB Thompson questioned if it is true that salt is only effective at certain 

temperatures.  P. Ruscko advised that it is a function of the concentration of the solution.  He stated 

that normally when you get into lower temperatures it can become less effective which is why you 

either use additional sodium chloride or within the liquid that is applied prior to the salt hitting the 

pavement there are additional additives to help get the melting going. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

Motion by J. Dillon, second by M. Turner to concur with Consent Agenda Items B-E5. 

 

 In reference to Item E2, M. Larson asked Chief Lowen to weigh in on using a 4 ft. fence 

versus an 8 ft. fence.  Mayor Sager advised that there is a distinction between the music fest 

which is a longer term activity and this one which is a shorter term activity in terms of the 

day and hours.  He added that there is some past experience with other outside events relative 

to the size of the fence.  M. Larson stated that she thought it was because of handing beer 

over the fence. 

 

C. Smiley stated that the music fest is a longer event with longer hours into the evening.  She 

stated that they anticipate a bigger crowd at music fest because it is in the middle of summer 

and the area of the event is larger which makes it more difficult to see people handing things 

over.  She stated that it was Staff’s feeling, noting that she did not consult the Chief prior to 

the meeting.  She stated that the City thinks it is a great idea, but they really didn’t have time 

to sit down and have a long discussion because the event organizers needed to get it on the 

agenda as soon as possible so they can get all of their arrangements made.    

 

C. Smiley believes that if the Chief feels that the 4 ft. fence wouldn’t be appropriate, it would 

be acceptable to the event organizers.  She stated that when they did the memo, it was felt 

that because the area is smaller, the crowd will be smaller due to the time of year, the hours 

are shorter and it’s a single day event that it would be appropriate to have a shorter row of 

fence as opposed to two rows or a higher one.  She advised that they are proposing to fence in 

the western sidewalk so that the event goers can go between their places of business and the 

outdoor event, which is conducive to having a shorter fence.   

 

Chief Lowen stated that he is sure the event organizers will have their security personnel 

there and he agrees that the area lends itself to a maybe less restrictive fencing situation.  C. 

Smiley advised that the request came up quickly and they wanted to get it approved to get 

going.  M. Turner stated that he hopes it stays to the 4 ft. because the 8 ft. feels like a cage.   

 

B.        MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS:              
            January 21, 2014 Regular Meeting 

 January 21, 2014 Executive Session 

  

 C.       WARRANTS:   3601      3602   MFT #530    

 

 D. MINUTES AND REPORTS:  

 Police Department Report – December 2013 

 Community and Economic Development – Year-End Report 



Woodstock City Council 

2/4/14 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 Library Board Minutes – December 5, 2013  

   

E. MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 17 

 

1. Old Courthouse Temporary Signage - Adoption of Ordinance 14-O-14 varying the 

City of Woodstock Unified Development Ordinance to allow the installation of three 

banners on the Old Courthouse. 

 

2.   Benton Street St. Patrick’s Day Event – Approval of the following: 

          a.) Approval to hold the Benton Street St. Patrick’s Day event on Benton Street 

 between the hours of Noon and 10:00PM on Saturday, March 15, 2014 

 conditional upon the items set forth above; 

          b.) Waiver of the prohibition of alcohol in the public way for the fenced event area 

 only and during specified event hours only, with all alcohol consumption in the 

 public way ceasing at 10:00PM; 

          c.) Closure of Benton Street between Judd Street and the railroad tracks between 

 the hours of 6:00AM and Midnight on Saturday, March 15, 2014; 

          d.)Approval of Ordinance 14-O-15 Imposing Certain Temporary Traffic 

 Restrictions and Parking Restrictions for   Benton Street St. Patrick Day Event in 

 the City of Woodstock on Saturday, March 15, 2014. 

 

3. E-cigarette and Alternative Nicotine Products - Ordinance 14-O-16 amending sections 

of Title 3 and 4 of the Woodstock City Code regarding alternative nicotine products. 

 

4.  Award of Contract – Backup Generator for Well #8 - Approval of an award of contract 

for the purchase and installation of a generator to the lowest, responsible bidder, 

Ridgeview Electric, Inc. at a cost not to exceed $33,450. 

 

5.  Award of Contract – Repairs to Well #11 – Approval to waive competitive bids and an 

award of contract for repairs to Well #11 to Layne Christensen Company for a total 

estimated cost not to exceed $23,225. 

 

A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: M. Larson, J. Dillon, M. Saladin, Mayor Sager, RB Thompson, M. 

Turner, J. Starzynski. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

 

6.   Discussion of the CIP 

 In regards to the amount of money put in for the streets, M. Saladin questioned if this winter has 

had a worse affect on the streets and stated that he doesn’t know what that will mean going 

forward with the CIP.  Mayor Sager stated that there has been three very bad years of buckling 

and potholes and advised that it is always difficult to get ahead of the curve unless you are 

willing to invest multiple millions of dollars in one year but with the unknowns of any given 

winter it will be next to impossible to stay in front on a routine basis.  He stated that there is no 

question that it does deteriorate the roadways and it has a real impact on the amount of money 

that the community has to invest to try to keep the roadways passable.   

 

 P. Ruscko stated that Public Works has seen on some of the emergency projects they have 

conducted over the winter, frost as deep as four feet.  He advised that they have sent a letter out 

to known users of overweight/oversize permits to let them know that this spring during the thaw 



Woodstock City Council 

2/4/14 

Page 5 of 8 

 

the City is not going to issue overweight/oversize permits that could further impact the roadways.  

He stated that when the frost is coming out of the ground the sub-base will be susceptible to 

additional impaction.  He stated that when you get this intense cold and frost that deep, you get 

pavement heaving.  He noted that there will be some settling and smoothing of the pavement 

surfaces as things thaw, but he won’t be surprised to see additional potholes and buckling.   

 

 RB Thompson stated that several retreats ago, Council addressed the condition of the roads and 

noted that their resolution was to construct new roads with deeper bases and more pavement.  He 

stated that when we go to repairing roads by just resurfacing the depth isn’t increased.  He 

believes it might be something that needs to be addressed because if the roads are only going to 

last so long, it might be more cost effective to make them deeper so they last longer. 

 

 M. Turner questioned the capacity for sewage treatment and wastewater.  P. Ruscko stated that 

they have seen, since the economic downturn, the city’s capacity numbers at both the water and 

wastewater treatment plants remain the same.  He stated that the amount available for additional 

development has increased and could be due to people conserving more or the increase in vacant 

homes.  He stated that the city is in the 50-70% capacity in use, but they have seen a continued 

downward trend over the last few years.  He stated that even though it was a relatively wet year, 

there was ample capacity.   

 

 M. Turner advised that he would like to continue to monitor how many households they are away 

from having to begin to address it.  He stated that he would like Public Works to keep on top of it 

so they can know when to begin to fund and budget for it.  RB Thompson advised that there are 

population units that they know depending on residential, commercial or industrial usage.  P. 

Ruscko stated that he can provide the Council with where we are at and they can take the flow 

rate and convert it into population equivalents.  

 

 RB Thompson stated that people drink less water from the tap and questioned if it has an impact 

on the reduction of water treatment.  P. Christensen stated that it is probably more of a function 

of low flow toilets and low flow shower heads.  He stated that across the board water 

consumption is down.  He advised that the part they struggle with right now is whether it is 

attributable to vacancies or people using less water. 

 

 J. Dillon stated that she would like to see something happen with the pedway mural because she 

thinks the pedway is just asking for trouble with the big, blank slate.  She questioned if it is 

something they can engage the high school art departments to see if they can come up with 

something and possibly trim the cost on it.   

 

7.   Discussion of Distressed Housing. 

 M. Saladin stated that one thing to keep in mind is the property rights issue.  He stated that he 

doesn’t know how far Staff has gone with different thought processes beyond downzoning, 

variations or the existing ordinance that Council recently passed relative to rehab.  He reported 

that he read an article on how the City of Elgin assists homeowners relative to sprucing up their 

properties.  He noted that the article talked about different grants the city has received and 

partnerships they have with federal dollars coming out of the HUD program.  He stated that he 

doesn’t know what is out there that the City can tap into to assist people with renovations.   

 

 J. Dillon stated that she likes the idea of taking it in a positive approach instead of a punitive 

approach.  M. Larson thinks it would be a good thing for the grant writer to look into. 

 



Woodstock City Council 

2/4/14 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 M. Turner stated that after property taxes, this issue is the most consistent thing he gets from 

residents.  He stated that you go down a street and generally there are good looking, well 

maintained homes and then there is a home that is not in good condition and typically it has been 

upzoned on that street a long time ago.  He stated he is about as conservative as it comes when it 

relates to economic issues and property rights but this really hit home when he was at a friend’s 

residence on Tryon Street which is a beautiful house valued in today’s market about $250,000- 

$300,000.  He stated that the entire street between Dean and South has some terrific homes and 

then there is a bank owned two-flat right next to his friend’s residence on the market at one time 

for $65,000.  He stated that property has property rights as do his friend’s home and all the 

homes up and down the street.   

 

 M. Turner stated that the intent is to have an action that Council feels comfortable taking, which 

may include analyzing whether individual parcels may warrant a review by them to consider if 

downzoning will work, married with a program that offers incentives.  He suggested setting aside 

a fund and choosing who would receive it.  He stated it would be some incentive saying that if 

the homeowner brings the property to this zoning and Council has identified this property as 

targeted that might in turn lead to a few of those postage stamp issues disappearing.  

 

 M. Turner stated that the concept is not about a broad change across the community and it’s not 

anti rental or anti multi-family housing.  He thinks the concept is saying that as we look at 

pockets within in the city and have a proactive approach, a little bit of hammer and a little bit of 

carrot, might be in order to protect all the residents and the image of the city.  He tossed out the 

idea of if a homeowner or bank comes to the City and says they are willing to tear down and 

build a house that meets standards, he would be willing to waive half or all of the fees for 

building permits.  He stated that if they don’t do the project the City isn’t getting the money 

anyways but if they do the project and the City doesn’t get the money for the fees at least we end 

up with a house whose property value goes up, the City gets more taxes and the entire local 

community is lifted.   

 

 M. Turner stated that he would like to see Council be more aggressive as it relates to trying to be 

creative and proactive both in a more positive and perhaps punitive approach. He believes there 

are places in the city that they can identify where this would be a net positive without trampling 

on those property rights. 

 

 Mayor Sager stated that he is supportive of taking an incentivize approach to these types of 

opportunities.  He finds a little bit of a challenge in regards to stepping on personal property 

rights.   He stated that it moves into rezoning or downzoning.  He stated that there are some old 

Victorian homes in the community that have been moved from single family down to multi-

family and he believes that now going in to rezone and force that with a heavy hand is going to 

be pretty difficult and he’s not sure if he is supportive of that.  He is supportive of looking at 

every opportunity within an incentive package, working perhaps with local lenders, looking at the 

fees and looking at a program of funds that might be available.  He is in favor of looking at it on 

a small basis for individual considerations that might turn some of these small parcels around. 

 

 M. Saladin stated that it starts with a vision of what we want the properties to somewhat look like 

as you enter the city.   He questioned if there have been any enforcement issues with the Property 

Maintenance Ordinance.  C. Carlson stated that they haven’t had a lot of requests or calls since 

the start of the program.   He advised that it works like the Code Enforcement and is more of a 

complaint process.  He stated that Staff fields the calls or complaints regarding property 



Woodstock City Council 

2/4/14 

Page 7 of 8 

 

maintenance as they come up.  He advised that they have been able to apply it sparingly so far 

noting that there hasn’t been a huge influx of new calls based on the Property Maintenance Code. 

 

 M. Larson stated that she appreciated the reports because there were elements that she hadn’t 

thought through in terms of the time tables and property rights.  She stated that she always was 

thinking of it as incentivizing a direction that they want to see. She didn’t know if the legal side 

was dealt with at all and asked R. Schlossberg if there are any issues to watch for if they decided 

to go the carrot direction. 

 

 R. Schlossberg stated that sometimes because Woodstock is non home rule there are some 

questions regarding their authority to offer certain programs.  She stated that generally speaking 

the types of things that Council has thrown out tonight can probably be structured in a way that 

would not be prohibitive. 

 

 Mayor Sager questioned if there is a general consensus from Council that they are interested in 

further investigation and consideration of incentivization opportunities.  RB Thompson stated 

that there are areas in town where it is area wide and he would like to look at that as well.  M. 

Turner agreed and stated that there are places were it is more extensive and he would like Staff to 

look at it too.   He doesn’t think that the solutions or the approach is necessarily the same.  Mayor 

Sager stated that it may not be that different either.   

 

 M. Turner referenced downzoning and stated that at some point someone said take the Victorian 

to a three flat and this body in the past approved it.  He stated that he didn’t read the legal report 

as Council can’t do it.  He read that there is potential for it.  He stated that he wouldn’t 

completely discount that if Council wants to get aggressive and they believe there is an egregious 

situation with an upzoning that occurred in the past, Council shouldn’t take it off the table.  He 

doesn’t want to lead with it if the body doesn’t agree with it, but he doesn’t want to completely 

take it off the table.  He stated that Council has the authority; they upzoned, they can downzone 

and he noted that he isn’t saying that they do it now or broadly but they do have that authority. 

 

 M. Saladin stated that it gets down into the amortization period; how long will it take before you 

have to change.  R. Schlossberg stated that generally speaking you will be guessing a little bit 

about what the proper amortization period is. She advised that if you accompany it with some 

incentives, you might decrease the likelihood of litigation.  M. Turner stated that is the point of 

waiving building fees or waiving property taxes if they are able to do that. 

 

 J. Starzynski stated that he lives on a street with renters and he personally feels that it isn’t an 

issue of he doesn’t like the renters or the fact that they are in a rental, but he thinks it is more of 

an issue of the condition of the property and how it reflects on his property.  He stated that he 

likes the carrot approach better because he knows there are programs that will incentivize 

whether they are the homeowner or somebody that is purchasing.  He stated that there is money 

out there to fix the houses up and he believes that is what they should focus on.   

 

 Mayor Sager stated that he thinks that there is a tendency to prefer to look at how to incentivize 

something versus how they can take a more heavy hand approach.  He noted that it doesn’t 

necessarily mean that as we move further down the road that there might be some egregious 

situations that Council needs to address.  He stated that if there is the opportunity to take a more 

positive, supportive approach that is where Council would like to start and see how things move 

forward from there.  RB Thompson stated that now is the best time with the depressed values; it 

can be more effective now. 



Woodstock City Council 

2/4/14 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 

 Mayor Sager asked Council if they have reached a consensus to have Staff further explore 

incentivizing and Council conceded. 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

RB Thompson suggested the recognition of high school students Jon Walsh and Maura Beattie.  

Mayor Sager advised that RB Thompson will need to forward the information from the school 

district to Staff. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion by M. Saladin, second by RB Thompson, to adjourn the regular meeting of the City Council 

to the next Regular Meeting on February 18, 2014. Ayes: M. Larson, J. Dillon, M. Saladin, Mayor 

Sager, RB Thompson, M. Turner, J. Starzynski. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. 

Motion carried. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:58 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

___________________________ 

Dianne Mitchell - City Clerk 

























































































       City of    

               
 

City Manager’s Off ice                                                121  W.  Calhoun  St reet   

Terry Wil lcockson                                           Woodstock,  I l l ino is  60098  

Grant  Wri ter                                                                                            815/338-4300  ext .  11128  

                                                                                                                       fax 815/33 4-2269  

                                                                                                       gran twri ter@woodstocki l .gov  

                                                                                                                 www.woodstocki l .gov  

Memo 

To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

From: Terry Willcockson, Grant Writer 

Date: February 10, 2014 

Re: Approval of a Resolution for a Community Development Block Grant Funding Request 

for the Residential Rehabilitation Assistance Program 

The attached Resolution to approve a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding 

Request for the establishment of a Woodstock Residential Rehabilitation Assistance Program is 

respectfully submitted for City Council’s consideration and approval. 

 

The City Council has recently expressed ongoing concerns about possible deterioration of 

housing stock in the community.  Specifically, Council requested staff to explore ways to 

encourage and provide positive motivation to residents to achieve compliance with code 

violations, especially in lieu of ongoing economic conditions that prevent many homeowners 

from pursuing much needed repairs.  It was specifically mentioned in a recent meeting that it 

would be productive for staff to pursue grant programs that addressed such housing rehabilitation 

needs.   

 

The City’s Grant Writer has been able to identify a funding opportunity through the CDBG 

program to support such a project, with particular emphasis on providing direct financial 

assistance to qualified elderly and special needs homeowners for life-safety repairs.  In fact, 

funded through HUD, the proposed project is precisely the type of program development the 

CDBG program was designed to encourage. 

 

The requisite approval from McHenry County’s Community Development Division to submit a 

formal application for $50,000, to establish a pilot program offering funding to qualified 

homeowners has been obtained.  This funding would allow residents who meet defined LMI 

(low/moderate income) criteria, to complete home repair projects that will ensure the residents’ 

safety, security and well-being, and prevent potential decline of the surrounding neighborhood’s 

property values.   

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 18a



 

The program will be administered through the City’s Community & Economic Development 

Department, with assistance from McHenry County’s Community Development Division, who 

will help establish a detailed Procedures Manual to ensure all required guidelines are met and 

followed.  The pilot program, as proposed, will provide fully-funded repairs for such projects as 

new roofs, plumbing, HVAC and accessibility improvements, for populations including 

extremely and very low-income, seniors, veterans and disabled individuals, for 5-10 homeowners 

initially. 

 

Upon notification of award from McHenry County, participants will be determined through a 

publicly-posted and staff-evaluated application procedure.  Following project assessment by the 

City’s Building Inspection team, a list of qualified, licensed contractors will be asked to submit 

bids for the specified projects, and all awarded projects will be monitored by City staff to their 

conclusion.  The City will pay the contractors, and submit project documentation to the County 

for reimbursement through CDBG allocated funds.  As a companion project, area volunteer 

agencies, churches and community service organizations will be enlisted to assist in providing 

more general aesthetic improvements that might be desired for identified properties, in addition 

to the life safety measures funded by this grant. 

 

CDBG applications, by their nature, are extremely demanding in their level of required detail and 

project oversight, and all required standards and conditions will be met in order to qualify for this 

project’s funding consideration. Final submissions for this annual program are due by March 7
th

, 

with awards made in June and project completion required by mid-October.  A Resolution of 

Support from the City Council for this project is required as part of the City’s submittal.  The 

City Administration, therefore, requests your approval to proceed with the proposed CDBG grant 

application as outlined above. 

 

If Council is supportive of this project as outlined above and the required CDBG grant 

application, approval is requested for the attached resolution, identified as Document No. 

______, A Resolution Authorizing Application to the 2014 CDBG Program through McHenry 

County for the Residential Rehabilitation Assistance Program. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
1



RESOLUTION NO. 14-R-_______ 

 

CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

MC HENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

A Resolution Authorizing Application to the  

2014 CDBG Program through McHenry County  

for the Residential Rehabilitation Assistance Program 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock desires to undertake the Residential Rehabilitation 

Assistance Program; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock desires to apply to the CDBG Program through 

McHenry County for a grant for the purpose of carrying out this project; and 

 

WHEREAS, City Manager Roscoe Stelford has the authority to submit a CDBG 

application for federal funding and to enter into contract with McHenry County for 

funding award, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Woodstock City Council hereby 

approves this project and authorizes application to the CDBG Program through McHenry 

County in the amount of $50,000 to fund the 2014 Residential Rehabilitation Assistance 

Program. 

 

Passed and approved this 18
th
 day of February, 2014. 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 

(SEAL)    APPROVED: 

     ______________________________ 

     Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

 

ATTEST: _________________________________ 

  City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.1



       City of    

               
 

City Manager’s Off ice                                                121  W.  Calhoun  St reet   

Terry Wil lcockson                                           Woodstock,  I l l ino is  60098  

Grant  Wri ter                                                                                            815/338-4300  ext .  11128                               

                                                                                                                       fax 815/33 4-2269  

                                                                                                       gran twri ter@woodstocki l .gov       

                                                                                                                 www.woodstocki l .gov  

Memo 

To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

From: Terry Willcockson, Grant Writer 

Date: February 10, 2014 

Re: Approval of a Resolution for a Community Development Block Grant Funding Request 

for the Library Roof Repair & Renovation. 

The attached Resolution to approve a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding 

Request for the Woodstock Public Library Roof Repair & Renovation is respectfully submitted 

for City Council’s consideration and approval. 

 

The Woodstock Public Library underwent a significant addition to its former facility in 2001.  At 

that time, an addition was built with 8,000 sq. ft. of roofing that has since proven to be poorly 

designed and constructed, and the construction party liable is no longer in business.  As such, the 

roof experiences continuous episodes of leaking and weather intrusion, causing health and safety 

hazards for both patrons and staff, as well as additional damage to ceiling tiles, equipment and 

materials.   

 

These conditions incur additional expense and staff time for cleaning and damage assessment, as 

well as needed replacement of materials affected.  In addition, the City faces increased liability 

risks with the possibility of staff or patron slip and falls due to wet conditions that might arise 

unexpectedly or in undetected areas of the building.  Previously, such capital improvement 

building needs were made using new residential developer donations, which have been 

challenged by the significant decline in new housing. 

 

The City’s Grant Writer has been able to identify a funding opportunity through the CDBG 

program to support such a project.  The requisite approval from McHenry County’s Community 

Development Division, who administers this HUD program, to submit a formal application for 

$65,000 has been approved.  The estimated project costs, according to a previous professional 

assessment, include completely repairing and restoring a significant portion of the roof to a 

water-tight form, as well as replacing numerous interior water-damaged ceiling tiles. 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 18b



CDBG applications, by their nature, are extremely demanding in their level of required detail and 

project oversight, and all required standards and conditions will be met in order to qualify for this 

project’s funding consideration.  Final submissions for this annual program are due by March 7
th

, 

with awards made in June and project completion required by mid-October.  A Resolution of 

Support from the City Council for this project is required as part of the City’s submittal.  The 

City Administration; therefore, request your approval to proceed with the proposed CDBG grant 

application as outlined above.  

 

If Council is supportive, approval is requested of the attached resolution, identified as 

Document No. _________, A Resolution Authorizing Application to the 2014 Community 

Development Block Grant Program through McHenry County for the Woodstock Public 

Library Roof Repair and Renovation Project. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
2



RESOLUTION NO. 14-R-_____ 

 

CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

MC HENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

A Resolution Authorizing Application to the  

2014 Community Development Block Grant Program through McHenry County  

for the Woodstock Public Library Roof Repair & Renovation Project 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock desires to undertake the Woodstock Public Library 

Roof Repair & Renovation project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock desires to apply to the Community Development 

Block Grant (CDBG) Program through McHenry County for a grant for the purpose of 

carrying out this project; and 

 

WHEREAS, City Manager Roscoe Stelford has the authority to submit a CDBG 

application for federal funding and to enter into a contract with McHenry County for 

funding award, 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Woodstock City Council hereby 

approves this project and authorizes application to the CDBG Program through McHenry 

County in the amount of $65,000 for the Woodstock Public Library Roof Repair & 

Renovation project. 

 

Passed and approved this 18
th
 day of February, 2014. 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 

(SEAL)    APPROVED: 

     ______________________________ 

     Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

 

ATTEST: _________________________________ 

  City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.2



 

 

       City of    

               
 

Office  of  the City Manager                                                  phone 815 .338 .4301  

Rosco e C.  S te l ford  I I I ,  Ci ty Manager                                                      fax 815 .334 .2269  

121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                    c i t yman ager@woodsto cki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

  Roscoe Stelford III, City Manager 

 

FROM: Jeff Van Landuyt, Assistant Public Works Director 

  Cindy Smiley, Executive Assistant 

 

DATE:  February 5, 2014 

 

RE:  Cigarette Receptacles 

 

 

Council will recall that at its June, 2013 Retreat, staff was directed to develop a program for the 

funding and placement of cigarette receptacles on the historic Woodstock Square.  As 

background, the Smoke Free Illinois Act (effective January 1, 2008), while commendable for its 

efforts to curtail the effects of second-hand smoke, has resulted in a significant amount of 

cigarette debris littering the Square, most notably in the Benton Street area.  Staff was requested 

to explore the possibility of placing receptacles along Benton Street which would, hopefully, 

reduce or possibly even eliminate this litter.  Various suggestions were made concerning the 

funding and maintenance of these receptacles. 

 

In researching this issue further, Public Works found that the cigarette litter is not confined only 

to the Benton Street area, but rather is present at other areas around the Square.  Further, it is 

important to note that the City funds and maintains all of the litter receptacles in the public way 

on the Square as part of its efforts to keep our downtown both attractive and welcoming.  

Therefore, it would be appropriate for the City to fund and maintain the cigarette receptacles as 

well.  In this way, the City can ensure that the receptacles are placed where needed and also that 

they are kept emptied and well-maintained. 

 

Attached is a flyer depicting the receptacle suggested for use on the Square.  While the 

receptacle is shown in silver, those proposed for the Square would be black to match the other 

Square amenities.  At a cost of $420 each, these receptacles are a bit larger and more substantial, 

allowing for the retention of additional litter.  The proposed receptacle can be ground or wall 

mounted which would help limit damage and secure these containers from possible theft.  Also 

attached is a diagram showing the proposed locations for each of the receptacles based upon 

areas identified by Public Works that historically require cleaning for this type of litter.  This 

would result in the installation of three receptacles along the west side of Benton Street, two 

receptacles on the east side of Main Street, two receptacles on the west side of Main Street, one 

receptacle near the northeast corner of Clay and Church Streets (i.e., near the Red Iron Tavern), 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 18c



 

 

one receptacle near the southeast corner of Dean and Van Buren Streets (i.e., near Angelo’s 

Restaurant), and one receptacle near the southeast corner of Van Buren and Johnson Streets (i.e., 

near Starbucks). 

 

The City Administration is proposing to fund the purchase of the proposed cigarette receptacles 

at a cost of $4,200 through the Tax Increment Financing Fund utilizing savings from several 

projects that are projected to end the fiscal year below authorized budgetary levels.  Public 

Works employees would install the receptacles as the weather and their workload allows. 

 

If Council is supportive of the purchase and installation of the ten (10) cigarette litter 

receptacles in the locations previously indicated, the City Administration would proceed 

with the purchase and installation as outlined above. 

 

 

rstelford
Approved







 

 

Memo 
To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

From: Paul Christensen, Finance Director 

Date: February 12, 2014 

Re: Designated Depository Ordinance Update 

In accordance with the City’s Municipal Code (Section 1.6C.4, Deposit of Funds) and the 

Illinois Compiled Statutes (65 ILCS 5/3.1-35-50), the City Treasurer is authorized to invest 

the City’s funds in depositories specifically designated by the City Council.  The Finance 

Director serves as the Treasurer for the City of Woodstock.  The Finance Department updates 

this Ordinance on an annual basis to include new depositories or reflect changes in the City’s 

Investment Policy. 

The first section of this Ordinance has historically identified as designated depositories all of 

the financial institutions located within the City’s corporate boundaries.  In addition, the City 

Administration has included money-market accounts currently used by the City as designated 

depositories.  Illinois Funds is used by the State to directly deposit income taxes, sales taxes 

and other income collected on a monthly basis.  Illinois Funds is a money-market investment 

vehicle managed by the State Treasurer.  The Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET) 

has also been included as a designated depository.  IMET invests in treasury securities and is 

managed by a not-for-profit investment company which is comprised of local government 

members.   

Furthermore, the first section of this Ordinance includes a provision that requires a collateral 

agreement be in place prior to any deposit that would result in the City’s total deposits 

exceeding FDIC insurance coverage.  In previous years, the City’s Ordinance restricted the 

maximum deposit to a $100,000 based on the FDIC insurance levels that were in place at that 

time.  The amount for FDIC insurance was increased to $250,000 in response to the numerous 

bank failures brought on by a recessionary economy. 

The City Administration is only allowed to invest funds in excess of current FDIC insurance 

in financial institutions indicated in Section 1 of this Ordinance and if the appropriate 

collateral is in the custody of the City’s agent. 

Finance Department  
       City of   

                

 

121 W. Calhoun Street  
Woodstock, I l l inois   60098  
815/338-4300 
Fax 815/334-2269 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 18d



 

The second section of the Ordinance includes a provision that automatically designates any 

financial institution covered by FDIC insurance and located within the United States and its 

territories as a designated depository.  This section does prevent the investment of City funds 

in any US financial institution that is in excess of current FDIC coverage limits.  During this 

extremely challenging interest rate market, the City Administration has invested funds with a 

variety of banks and other financial institutions that are covered by FDIC insurance and are 

located throughout the United States.  Due to the FDIC coverage cap, a collateral agreement is 

not required with these depositories since all of the City’s deposits are completely covered by 

FDIC insurance.   

As a point of clarification, the Finance Department has not previously invested amounts that 

exceed an individual bank’s FDIC coverage level based on their respective participation in the 

Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (CDARS).  The CDARS program allows 

investors to work with a single financial institution and invest significant dollars (i.e. up to $50 

million) in what appears as one certificate of deposit without the need for additional 

collateralization.  This system represents a network of banks that receive individual pieces of 

the larger investment, with all of these smaller investments taking place behind the scenes.  

The smaller certificates of deposits held by the network members now fall within FDIC 

coverage levels.  This allows for the entire deposit to be protected through FDIC coverage 

even through the original investment exceeds any individual bank’s FDIC insurance cap.  In 

addition, the CDARS system attempts to match deposits of a like sum back to the initiating 

bank, which, in effect, allows these investments to remain within the community and support 

local initiatives. 

The Finance Department has discussed this program with the individual banks that are 

members as well as with the City’s auditors and determined that in the case of a bank default 

adequate coverage should exist.  In fact, the City’s auditors have indicated that investments 

placed through the CDARS program would still receive the safest categorization level for 

custodial risk, which is disclosed each year within the City’s financial statements.  With 

interest rates at an unprecedented low, the City will need to continue its efforts to access all 

appropriate investment vehicles to maximize the overall return for the City’s portfolio while 

providing the highest degree of protection available to safeguard the principal balances.   

Recommendations: 

It is recommended that the attached Ordinance, entitled “An Ordinance Designating 

Depositories for the City of Woodstock” and identified as Document Number _________, 

be approved. 

Please feel free to contact me with any additional questions. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
3



mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.3



 

judgment shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which remainder 

shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, 

approval and publication in pamphlet form (which publication is hereby authorized) as 

provided by law. 

SECTION 6: Passed and approved this 18
th
 day of February, 2014. 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 

(SEAL)    APPROVED: 

     ______________________________ 

     Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

 

ATTEST: _________________________________ 

  City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

 

Passed:  __________________________________ 

Approved: __________________________________ 

Published: __________________________________ 

 



 
 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Roscoe C. Stelford, City Manager 

 

FROM: Nicholas Weber, Library Director 

 

DATE:  February 12, 2014 

 

RE:   Library Shelving RFP 

 

 

As part of the internal repurposing and reorganization of the Library, the Library Board 

authorized the Director to create and distribute a Request for Proposals (RFP) involving new 

shelving units, new shelves and new end caps.  The new units were to both expand the library’s 

current capacity in its fiction, large print and audio-visual areas, and also improve the appeal of 

the front entry area by replacing imposing 90-inch tall shelving units with 66-inch tall units. 

 

An RFP was developed and distributed to five known regional vendors.  The RFP was also 

placed on the City and Library websites.  Two of the vendors did not respond in any fashion and 

did not submit proposals, one declined because its Illinois office had recently been closed.  Two 

vendors requested additional information, but only one submitted an actual proposal.  

Unfortunately, this proposal was more than double what the Library Board had been anticipating 

for this project’s costs. 

 

At its February 6
th

 meeting, the Board and the Director discussed various options, including 

accepting the one bid, reworking the RFP and redistributing it, or declining the one proposal and 

not rebidding the project.  The Board decided to attempt the reorganization with existing 

materials and thus declined the one proposal and did not pursue rebidding the project. 

 

In accordance with IL Statute, the Woodstock Public Library Board is authorized to accept and 

reject bids for projects specific to and funded by Library operations.  While specific action by the 

City Council is not required in this matter, I am forwarding this report for City Council 

consideration to continue the ongoing efforts to foster collaboration throughout our City’s 

organization.   

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 18e



 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

       City of    

               
 

Department of  Publ ic  Works                                                  phone 815 .338 . 6118  

326  Washin gton  St reet                                                      fax 815 .334 .226 3  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                                j van lan du yt@wood stocki l .go v  

                                               www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 

To:  Mr. Roscoe Stelford 

 

From:  Jeff Van Landuyt 

 

Re: Request to Waive Competitive Bids for the Purchase of Cation Exchange 

Resin and the Approval of Contract for Repairs to First Street Water 

Treatment Plant Softener   

 

Date:  February 11, 2014 

 

In October 2013, during a routine inspection of the First Street Water Treatment Plant, operators 

noticed water on the floor under one of the three softeners.  Upon further inspection it was 

determined that a hole had corroded in the side of the steel vessel and process water was 

escaping through the hole.  The leak appears to be in a location where a bracket was welded to 

the interior of the vessel to hold a salt brine distribution rack.  As a temporary measure to return 

the softener to service, a plate and rubber gasket was strapped to the exterior of the cylindrical 

tank.   

 

In order to facilitate the proper repair of the leak, the cation-exchange resin will have to be 

removed, the interior of the tank inspected, repairs completed in accordance with manufacturers 

recommendations, the interior of the softener disinfected, and re-filled with new resin before the 

softener is returned to service.  The City intends to purchase the new resin outright as opposed to 

having a contractor purchase it and including a markup. 

 

This softener failure was unexpected and funds were not appropriated to cover this expenditure 

in FY13/14.  Total costs for the softener repair will be charged to 60-54-7-778, Water Treatment 

Plant Maintenance.  This line item will be exceeded at the end of FY13/14 but other projects 

within the Water & Sewer Utility Fund CIP have been completed for an amount less than 

budgeted.  The City Administration projects that the end-of-year fund balance will cover this 

unanticipated expenditure. 

 

The Department of Public Works developed bid specifications for repairs to the softener in an 

effort to solicit competitive bids.  The bid called for a base bid to pay for the work that is known 

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 18f



 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

to be needed and itemized pricing for the work that can only be determined after the softener is 

empty and an inspection completed.  On February 7, 2014 the following bids were received and 

publicly read aloud: 

 

Bidder     Base Bid   Itemized Prices  

 

Manusos General Contracting, Inc. $15,500  Welding - $17.50/ lineal inch 

 Fox Lake, IL         (250 lineal inch minimum)  

        Coating – spot repair - $7.00/ sq. in. 

        Surface prep – $7.00/ sq. in. 

          (250 square inch minimum) 

   

Boller Construction Co., Inc.  $28,000  Welding - $80.00/ lineal inch 

 Waukegan, IL      Coating – spot repair - $15.00/ sq. in.  

        Surface prep - $15.00/ sq. in. 

 

Aqua Service Company,   $35,000  Welding - $25.00/ lineal inch 

Bensenville, IL     Coating – spot repair - $5.00/ sq. in. 

       Surface prep - $3.00/ sq. in.   

 

In reviewing the bids, it has been determined that Manusos General Contracting, Inc. is the 

lowest responsible bidder.  Their base bid plus the itemized prices using the minimum quantities 

they set (welding $4,375 + coating $1,750 + surface prep $1,750 = $7,875) is still less than the 

base bid of the next lowest bidder.  If the itemized work goes beyond the minimum quantities 

(250 lineal inches & 250 square inches), Manusos has also submitted the lowest sum of itemized 

prices as compared to the other two bidders. 

 

Because of the fact the City will soon be entering the season when water pumping rates are the 

highest compared to other times throughout the year, it is imperative that this teardown and 

inspection process begin as soon as possible.  In May of 2013, Manusos was the contractor who 

the City contracted with to rehabilitate a softener at the Seminary Avenue Water Treatment 

Plant.  In addition, they completed the most recent improvement projects at both the Seminary 

Avenue and First Street facilities.  They are familiar with the facilities, the work, and the City 

has maintained a good working relationship with this contractor.    

 

It is also recommended that the City Council award a contract to Manusos General 

Contracting, Inc., Fox Lake, IL to complete the teardown and inspection of softener #2 at 

the First Street Water Treatment Plant, make necessary repairs, reinstall the filter sand 

and resin, and return the softener to normal service at the base bid of $15,500.  Other work 

will be based upon itemized prices as submitted but in no case will the extra work be less 

than $7,875.   



 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

As previously mentioned, the City Administration is also proposing the purchase of the exchange 

resin and sand bed from the manufacturer’s authorized representative, Drydon Equipment, Elgin, 

IL.  This will require the City Council to authorize a waiver of the competitive bid process.  It is 

important to note that a waiver of competitive bids requires a 2/3 majority vote in accordance 

with State Statutes. 

 

Therefore, it is recommended that the City waive competitive bids and purchase the ion 

exchange resin and sand bed from the manufacturer’s authorized representative Drydon 

Equipment, Elgin, IL to restore the softener to “like new” condition through the purchase 

of materials and supplies “not-to-exceed’ $23,579. 

 

 

c: Will Smith 

 Manusos General Contracting 

 Drydon Equipment 

rstelford
Approved



       City of    

               
Department of Community & Economic Development                     phone 815.338.4305  
121 W. Calhoun Street                                               fax 815.334.2267  
Woodstock,  I l l inois  60098                                                commdevdept@woodstocki l . gov 
                                        www.woodstocki l .gov  

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

February 10, 2014 

 

 

To:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From:  Jim Kastner, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

 

 

THE RESERVE AT WOODSTOCK – REQUEST FOR  

EXTENSION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL 

 

Attorney Thomas Burney will be appearing before the City Council seeking approval of a two-year 

time extension in which to prepare and file a final plat submittal for the Reserve at Woodstock 

subdivision.  Correspondence from Mr. Burney regarding this request is attached. 

 

The Reserve property is generally located on the east side of Zimmerman Road, approximately 330 

feet north of McConnell Road.  It is comprised of 10 undeveloped acres and is depicted on a location 

map which accompanies this memorandum.  It is characterized by rolling topography and is heavily 

wooded, with the majority of vegetation consisting of box elder trees.  Access to the site is from 

Zimmerman Road and both public and private utilities exist or can be extended to serve it. 

 

In 2006 the Plan Commission recommended that the preliminary plat be approved, however, 

approval was denied by the City Council.  The developer, in an effort to overturn the Council’s 

action, filed a legal suit against Woodstock.  The developer’s legal efforts were concluded when in 

2010 the 22
nd

 Judicial Circuit Court of McHenry County and in 2011 the Appeals Court both ruled in 

his favor.  The preliminary plat was subsequently approved by the Council on March 20, 2012.  A 

request by the developer for additional time in which to file final plat documents was also approved 

by the City Council on this same date.  Based on these approvals, a final plat submittal must occur by 

no later than March 30, 2014 in order for the preliminary plat to remain valid. 

 

A partial copy of the approved preliminary plat is attached and shows the general layout of the 

proposed development.  A review of the preliminary plat documents indicates that it remains in 

compliance with all relevant and applicable sections of the City’s zoning and subdivision 

regulations. 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 18g



  

 
 

 

Mr. Burney has requested an additional two-year time period or until March 30, 2016 for submitting 

final plat documents.  He has indicated in his correspondence that the reasons for his request are 

based on a sluggish real estate market and generally poor economic conditions over the past several 

years.  

 

If the City Council agrees with the request submitted by Mr. Burney on behalf of his clients, 

then it is recommended that Document Number _______, consisting of “A Resolution Granting 

a Second Extension of Time in Which to Submit Final Plat Documents for the Reserve at 

Woodstock Subdivision,” be approved. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
4



  

 
 

 



  

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Location Map - The Reserve at Woodstock 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

.   



 
 

   

 
 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 14-R-_________ 

 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SECOND EXTENSION OF TIME  

IN WHICH TO SUBMIT FINAL PLAT DOCUMENTS FOR 

THE RESERVE AT WOODSTOCK SUBDIVISION 

 

WHEREAS, on March 20, 2012 the City of Woodstock City Council approved Ordinance Number 

12-O-22 approving the Preliminary Plat of Subdivision for the Reserve at Woodstock, located on 

certain property (the “Subject Property”) described as: 

 

The North ½ of the South ½ of the Southeast ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 9, Township 

44 North, Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian, in the City of Woodstock, McHenry 

County, Illinois; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 20, 2012 the City of Woodstock City Council approved Resolution Number 

12-R-08 extending the Preliminary Plat of Subdivision approval to March 30, 2014; and  

 

WHEREAS, the owner and developer of the Reserve at Woodstock development has requested of 

the City Council that the Preliminary Plat of Subdivision approval for the Reserve at Woodstock be 

extended to March 30, 2016 so that additional time will be available to prepare and submit final plat 

documents for said subdivision.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois, as follows: The City Council’s approval of the Preliminary Plat of 

Subdivision for the Reserve at Woodstock (Ordinance Number 12-O-22) is hereby extended to 

March 30, 2016 in order to provide additional time in which to submit final plat documents and 

materials for consideration by the City. 

 

Ayes:  

Nays:  

Abstentions:  

Absentees: 

APPROVED: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: ________________________________ 

City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

 

Passed: _______________________ , 2014. 

Approved: _____________________ , 2014. 

Published: _____________________ , 2014. 

 

Prepared by: City of Woodstock, 121 West Calhoun Street, Woodstock, IL 60098 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.4



  

 
 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 

 

I, DIANNE MITCHELL, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, acting and qualified Clerk of 

the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, and that as such Clerk, I am the keeper of the 

records and minutes and proceedings of the Mayor and Councilmen of said City. 

 

I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council, held on the 18
TH

 

day of February 2006, the foregoing Resolution entitled A RESOLUTION GRANTING A 

SECOND EXTENSION OF TIME IN WHICH TO SUBMIT FINAL PLAT DOCUMENTS 

FOR THE RESERVE AT WOODSTOCK SUBDIVISION was duly passed by said City Council. 

 

The pamphlet form of Resolution Number 14-R-_________, including the Resolution and a cover 

sheet thereof, was prepared, and a copy of such Resolution was posted in the City Hall, commencing 

on the ______ day of __________________, 2014, and continuing for at least 10 days thereafter.  

Copies of such Resolution were also available for public inspection upon request in the office of the 

City Clerk. 

 

I do further certify that the original Resolution, of which the attached is a true and correct copy, is 

entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful custodian and 

keeper of the same. 

 

GIVEN under my hand and seal of the City of Woodstock this ________ day of 

_______________________, 2014. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Dianne Mitchell, Clerk 

City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois 

(SEAL)  

 

 

 

 

 
 



       City of 

               
 
Woodstock Opera House  phone 815 .338 .4212  

John  Scharres ,  Direc tor  fax 815 .334 .2287  

121  Van Buren  St ree t  operahouse@woodstocki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098  www.woodsto cki l . go v  

  

  

 

TO: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

FROM: David Reeve, Opera House Production Manager 

DATE: January 29, 2014 

RE: Bid Openings for CIP Stage Lighting Project, Phase II 
 

 

Last year, the Opera House completed Phase I of the CIP Stage Lighting project with great 

success.  Last November, the bids were received for partial completion of the General Corporate 

– CIP fund for the Stage Lighting Project, Phase II.  All the work was accomplished in the 

timeframe described and the dimmers, electronics for the LED fixtures, and new outlet positions 

were installed.  This work was accomplished for a total price of $65,641 out of a total budget of 

$114,000.  The staff requested permission to spend a portion of the remaining funds to purchase 

LED ellipsoidal reflector spotlights to complement the general wash light LED fixtures 

purchased last year as part of the Phase I Stage Lighting Project. 

 

The LED Ellipsoidal stage lighting will have the same color-changing properties as our other 

fixtures, but they will be able to create a hard edge, do shutter cuts and use gobos (shadow 

projections).  We will be saving money by re-using the lens tubes and lenses from our older 

incandescent instruments.  These instruments will replace fixtures used from the auditorium 

ceiling position, front of balcony position, and various positions over the stage that require these 

special functions.  They will also be used for side lighting during musicals and ballet.  The Opera 

House will benefit from further reductions in both electrical consumption and air conditioning 

costs.  Each of the LED fixtures use almost 95% less electricity and heat while producing almost 

1.5 times the amount of usable light than comparable conventional stage-lighting fixtures. 

 

The staff put together a bid proposal indicating the City would purchase a minimum of 15 

fixtures and that the City reserved the right to purchase more depending on the submitted prices.  

The supplier was required to provide a delivered price per fixture.  Four bids were received and 

opened on Thursday, January 23, 2014 in the Library at the Woodstock Opera House.  The bids 

were: 

 

 MainStage Theatrical  $1,408.25 each, delivered 

 SuperTech   $1,440.00 each, delivered 

 Design Lab   $1,695.99 each, delivered 

 Chicago Spotlight  $1,715.50 each, delivered 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 18h



By awarding the bid to MainStage Theatrical Supply Co. in Milwaukee, the City will be able to 

purchase 30 LED Ellipsoidal Reflector Spotlights to complete the Opera House CIP Stage 

Lighting Project, Phase II.  At the same time, the City will achieve $35,000 in budgetary savings 

for the General Fund – CIP. 

 

Therefore, if City Council is supportive of this request, it is recommended that the City 

award the bid as a part of the Opera House Stage Lighting Project, Phase II, to MainStage 

Theatrical Supply Co., Milwaukee, WI for the purchase of 30 LED Ellipsoidal Reflector 

Spot Lights for a total delivered price of $42,247.50 ($1,408.25 each).  All costs will be 

charged to account 82-02-7-708, Opera House Improvements, which includes sufficient 

funds within the FY13/14 Budget. 

rstelford
Approved



…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  
 

Adm i n i s tra t i o n    ♦    Pa rk s    ♦    S tre e t  Ma i n te n a n ce    ♦    En g i n e e ri n g  

S e we r & W a te r C o n ve y a n ce    ♦    W a te r Tre a tm e n t    ♦    W a s te wa te r Tre a tm e n t  

       City of    

               
De partme nt of Publ i c Works  

3 2 6  W ash in gt o n  St r eet  
W o o dst o ck ,  I ll in o is 6 0 0 9 8  

   8 1 5 /3 3 8 -6 1 1 8  ♦  Fax  8 1 5 /3 3 4 -2 2 6 3  
p rusck o @wo o dst o ck il.go v  

www.wo o dst o ck il.go v  

To:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 
 

From:  Paul R. Ruscko, Public Works Director 
 

Re: Approval of an Ordinance Amending the Woodstock City Code Pertaining to 

Parking Revisions on the West Side of Blakely Street between South Street 

and Forest Avenue 

 

Date: February 13, 2014 

 
The current parking regulation on the west side of Blakely Street between South Street and 
Forest Avenue calls for No Parking During Designated Hours.  Signs are in place which state 

that no person shall park a vehicle between the hours of ten o'clock (10:00) A.M. and two o'clock 
(2:00) P.M., Monday through Friday, on school days.  This particular regulation solved one 

parking issue in the area, but has resulted in unintendedly causing another parking issue. 
 
The Alano Club of Woodstock is located at the southwest corner of the intersection of Blakely 

Street and South Street.  Membership has increased over the years; they frequently exceed the 
capacity of their small parking lot and have to utilize on-street parking for those attending 

meetings.  Their meetings typically are held Monday through Friday from twelve o’clock (12:00) 
P.M. to one o’clock (1:00) P.M.  Current parking restrictions are problematic, as on-street 
parking is not allowed during that timeframe on school days due to the aforementioned parking 

regulation.  In addition, no handicap parking is currently available to facilitate access for 
disabled members. 

 
A modification to the parking regulations in the area is needed to address both of the parking 
issues previously identified.  Instituting a Four-Hour Parking restriction on the west side of 

Blakely Street just south of South Street should address both issues with minimal potential to 
create additional parking issues.  Upon review of the parking regulations related to this matter, 

we also identified the need to further clarify the No Parking restriction on the west side of 
Blakely Street immediately south of South Street.  To facilitate handicap access, the City 
Administration will work with the Alano Club to designate one or two spaces in their existing 

parking lot, which is better suited to address this issue than utilizing on-street parking. 
 

The proposed modification to the parking regulations will reinforce that the first 73-feet along 
the west side of Blakely Street from South Street is No Parking.  This is consistent with the 
existing signage.  The following 130-feet along the west side of Blakely Street will become Four 

Hour Parking.  The balance of the west side of Blakely Street will remain No Parking During 
Designated Hours. 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 18i



…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  
 

Adm i n i s tra t i o n    ♦    Pa rk s    ♦    S tre e t  Ma i n te n a n ce    ♦    En g i n e e ri n g  

S e we r & W a te r C o n ve y a n ce    ♦    W a te r Tre a tm e n t    ♦    W a s te wa te r Tre a tm e n t  

In order to enact Four Hour Parking and No Parking restrictions for a portion of the west side of 
Blakely Street, it is recommended that the attached Ordinance, identified as Document 

#______ be approved amending the Woodstock City Code creating revisions to parking 

restrictions along the west side of the northern portion of Blakely Street as previously 

identified. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 14-O-_______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE CITY CODE 

OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PROVIDING FOR THE REVISION OF CERTAIN TRAFFIC REGULATIONS 

 

WHEREAS, it is an appropriate exercise of the police power of the City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois to regulate and restrict parking and the movement of traffic on City 

streets and alleys; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock has determined that it is reasonable and appropriate to 

revise the regulations limiting and controlling on-street parking along various streets and alleys 

within the City of Woodstock. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One. That Schedule VII of Section 5.3.7.B., No Parking During Designated Hours, of 

the Woodstock City Code is hereby amended by deleting the following: 

 

Street   Side   From    To 

Blakely  West   Forest    South Street 

 

Section Two. That Schedule VII of Section 5.3.7.B., No Parking During Designated Hours, of 

the Woodstock City Code is hereby amended by adding the following: 

 

Street   Side   From    To 

Blakely  West   Forest    190’ south of the 

          south right of way 

          line of South Street  

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.5



Section Three. That Schedule VII of Section 5.3.7, No Parking Places, of the Woodstock City 

Code is hereby amended by adding the following: 

 

Street   Side   From    To 

Blakely  West   South    60’ south of the 

          south right of way 

          line of South Street 

 

Section Four. That Schedule VIII of Section 5.3.8.C., Four Hour Parking, of the Woodstock 

City Code is hereby amended by adding the following: 

 

Street   Side   From    To 

Blakely  West   60’ south of the  190’ south of the 

      south right of way  south right of way 

      line of South Street  line of South Street 

 

Section Five. That the Public Works Department is hereby authorized and directed to place 

appropriate signs authorized by this Ordinance. 

 

Section Six. That all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

Section Seven.  That this Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No.14-O-____ and shall be in 

full force and effect after its passage, approval, and publication as is required by law. 

 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois and approved 

this 18th day of February, 2014. 

 

Ayes:  

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 

 

                                                                                  _____________________________________ 

Brian Sager Ph.D., Mayor 

 

 

Attest: __________________________________________ 

  City Clerk 

 


	February 18, 2014 City Council Agenda 
	A. Floor Discussion:
	1. Proclamation Recognizing Music in our Schools Month
	2. Proclamation Honoring Dave Reeve 

	 B. Minutes of Previous Meetings: February 4, 2014 Regular Meeting 
	C. Warrants:
	Warrant #3603
	Warrant #3604
	MFT #531

	D. Minutes and Reports:
	Department of Community and Economic Development Report -January 2014

	E. Manager's Report No. 18
	1. CDBG-Distressed Housing
	Doc.1

	2. CDBG Grant - Library Roof
	Doc.2

	3.Cigarette Receptacles 
	4. Designated Depositories 
	Doc.3 

	5. Rejection of Shelving Bids
	6. Award of Contract - Softener Repair
	7. Extension Request - Reserve of Woodstock
	Doc.4

	8. Award of Contract - Opera House Lighting
	9. Parking Revision- Blakely Street
	Doc.5





